REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES

The Humboldt County Regional Planning Commission Meeting was held on
September 10, 2009 at 5:30 p.m. in the County Meeting room of the Humboldt County
Courthouse located at Fifty West Fifth Street, Winnemucca, Nevada.

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT COMMISSIONERS ABSENT
Joyce Cox Ray Olsen Pam Wickkiser .,
Stephen Nye Richard Brown " N
Walter Lee Bob Edwards (\/ Ny \_;‘*
\ ‘\‘s,\ ‘M‘\;%“ x‘a/’y
STAFF PRESENT LEGAL COUNSEL", . >
: TN Y Yoo

Betty Lawrence Dana Toth Angie EIQ,L{IS %\ NS

PUBLIC PRESENT LN N
John Milton Mike Sheppard <™, Jhona Belt
John Bell Massey K. Mayo ., ~Bob Dola

Michael Michaelsen Ruthe Michaelseh,”~ . " "

N
Ray called the meeting to order at}5i§0 pm. Ray as%l} d if there were any corrections to the
August 27, 2009 minutes. Bob motioned-to “approve the minutes from August 27, 2009;
second by Stephen. Motion qam{ad:\ Ra)’[ askew”if there were any postponements to the
agenda items. Betty reported that no caqtéqg has been received from Donald Lykke and he

i “

was not present at the meeting. k T
a - '\\ j
. CONSENT AGE;A‘/_‘D(ISQUS&E}W& ACTION

S hel DN
Ray read thejdﬂq‘yvimqag;qnda}ems:
: A LN
A, UW-08-11E h\yiéWO¥a‘§pecial use permit application submitted by Kent Henderson &
Sallena Pool, ”s.,pr‘@ject manager, dba Winnemucca Dental Care, to allow for the
constructionandt’ use of a dental/medical office building in the R-3 (multiple family
residential distfict). Property is located at 806 Lay Street; assessor’s parcel

#16-071-11.

B. LP-09-05 A large parcel map application submitted by Desert Mountain Surveying on
behalf o Moana Investments, LLC to divide property located approximately 2+/- miles
north of Jungo Road and 8+/- miles northeast of Pronto into 4 lots; Section 9, T36N,
R36E; assessor's parcel #05-361-10.

Ray asked if anyone on the board wanted to pull anitem down. Ray then asked if anyonein
the public would like to pull an item down. Bob motioned to approve UW-08-11and LP-09-05,
second by Stephen. Motion passed unanimously.

lll.  PUBLIC HEARING/DISCUSSION & ACTION

Ray then read the following item:

A. UW-09-08 A special use permit application submitted by John H. Milton lll, as agent for

I




RPC Minutes
9-10-09 Meeting
Page 2

Humboldt Human Development Services, to allow administrative offices and a work
area for clients. Property is zoned R-3 (Multiple-Family Residential District) and is
located at 307 E. Fourth Street; assessor's parcel #15-235-10.

Ray asked if anyone on the board had any comments or concerns. Stephen requested to
step down so that he could speak as part of the public. Stephen was dismissed. There were
no further concerns of the board. Ray opened the item for public comment. Stephen Nye
(planning commission member) then approached the table. Stephen stated he had previously

\ the table. Mr.
Hdihg: . MPyMilton explained
the work area is for shredding paper and making crafts tha oldoff §ité™at craft fairs. Mr.
Michaelsen questioned what type of clients this business wo h‘a\(g. . Milton explained
the clients are disabled people that would be brought t “é"facih‘by té*‘\gork and would not be

driving themselves. Mr. Michaelsen questioned the | néi}’réf the ude’permit. Mr. Milton

explained the use permit would be valid as long as éhe\@é"eqnﬁp d. Mr. Michaelsen stated

that all his questions were answered and thanked oard fort irtime. Ray asked if there
were any other concerns. There were none. Walt ;.\m“ofti,gnédv—t’o approve UW-09-08; second
by Joyce. Motion passed unanimously. St;ﬁQén upet&mgdj}

. "‘ ; 5

Ray then read the following agenda ite;ﬁ!) ‘

B. RW-09-02 A rezone application Wd by E?l‘é>City of Winnemucca to change to the
zoning from R-1-9 (Single Famity Resi ehtqu, 9,000 sq. ft. min.) to P-R
(Parks-Recreation District) E)rr,fbrgp‘erty locgted at 380 E. Haskell St. & 1365 Mizpah St.;
assessor's parcel #'s 16-014-01.& 16-081-13.

%

Ray asked if anyone on the'board had an§ concerns. Richard asked why the rezone was
being done. Betty explair@étba’t“in\zpﬂo this issue was originally addressed but put on hold to
create a P-R Zoning Dis ict’.\.‘]'h‘egfe Wepé no further concermns from the board. Ray then
asked if there was any: Qe‘mﬁ}th‘esgtibu‘ wishing to make comment. Mike Sheppard then
approached the tablﬁn@ﬁa’ted\hé«a’nd his wife live on Minor Street across from the golf
course. Mr. Sheppa gk”tﬂ{fizgd‘ that he was in favor the zoning change adding that the golf
course was in place 15 yaars 2)ore zoning ordinances were, it is a public facility and not a
residential lot. Mr. Sheppa?d—sfated that his concern is that the city utilizes the corner, and has
for the last approximately 15 years, as a transitional garbage dump. Mr. Sheppard stated this
was formerly the local fishing derby as part of the public facility. He recognized that golf
courses need to have a shop, lawn mowers and all of the utilitarian things a golf course
needs—a place to store sand, a place to put cuttings from the goif course. He does not
believe it should have a garbage dump or construction machinery like heavy loaders and large
trucks which are not typical equipment used at a golf course. Mr. Sheppard provided to the
planning commission several photos of the subject location. Mr. Sheppard stated that he and

their house. He explained that he does not believe the NDEP would want household garbage
at the location. Mr. Sheppard spoke of the type of trash at the location. He felt that if the land
is rezoned there should be some type of provision that would prohibit a dump from being
across from his house. Ray asked Mr. Sheppard if he had discussed this with Steve West.

T




RPC Minutes
9-10-09 Meeting
Page 3

Mr. Sheppard stated there has been open dialogue and sometimes battle with Mr. West,
predecessors, and City Council for approximately 10 years. He stated the City Council does
not want to respond because it is not a policy issue. Mr. Sheppard stated he never gets
anywhere with them. Mr. Sheppard stated there is sometimes trouble with the work crew too
as they, (the Sheppards) are looked at as a thorn in the side. Mr. Sheppard explained that he

there is a 4’ fence that Somewhat screens it, but does not cha e /e/doing there.
Mr. Sheppard noted that transitional dump is not a permitted use i ed zoning.
Richard commented that sometimes the ordinances do n (St al\prohikjted uses as a
reasonable man would not put garbage there. Richard s ed\e a *réqd With Ray in that there

isn't much the RPC can do but in a public forum you ome ahd speak. Richard stated he
fawos
e\

did not agree with this practice either. Mr. Shepps , 1‘aiqe&~i§$:ues like these arise when
there is an application entered. He stated that ha delivered the evidence earlier to Betty,

N,

there may have been g city representative at iy eeting édding he would have been pleased
to hear their testimony. Mr. Sheppard thanked ’chg board.for their time and stated he
supported the zone change. Betty then ;Zakde an emailed statement from Steve West. Mr.

West’s email stated the city does not use the corner property across from the Sheppards’ home

property into co N VTR wWn
discussion onf :ed-to ctean up the property. Richard asked if a condition could be added
to the rezone asa ‘h@&mrﬁgndation. Ray suggested a letter from the board be sent. Richard

felt there should BQ@ "requmendation of no more than 1 dump truck load of debris allowed at
the site. Stephen a d. Bob asked Mr. Sheppard when the pictures were taken. Mr.

economical optio%IE "ng”e\mavil eg'hg:luded stating that the city wishes to bring the zoning of the

as there were questions for the applicant. Angie asked Mr. Sheppard if he was in favor of the
rezone. Mr. Sheppard stated he was but the City Manager stated there is not a dump there

area/garbage dump. Stephen motioned to table the item until the October meeting; second by
Walter. Motion passed with one nay vote from Bob.

.




RPC Minutes
9-10-09 Meeting
Page 4

- Ray then read the following item:

C. RH-09-03 A rezone application submitted by John and Jhona Bell to change the M-3
zoning district (Open Land Use District) to the NC-R zoning district (Neighborhood
Commercial/Rural district) on property located off Highway 8B in Paradise Valley;
assessor’s parcel # ‘s 04-531-22, 04-531-23 & a .46 acre portion of 04-531-24.

Ray asked the board if they had any comments or questions. Rjchard asked about the
minimum lot size. Ray asked if anyone in the public had any co?cjérqs with the item. Ray
asked if the applicants were present. John and Jhona Bell appro’a\at{edktb;; }able. Ray
asked if they were looking to create 1 acre lots for commerciaf L. Béﬂ‘ifd et it would be for
residential purposes. Ray asked if it would be for rentals. rf<‘BQIMQUe :

+t would not be for
rentals but for stick built homes. John Milton explained that th gpﬁi,_santfg’ property is outside
the sewer district, the system is at capacity and the magte lan Is high density residential
which allows .25 acre lots if a sewer system is available. > wen
they cannot hook up to the sewer they are Iooking[‘/u:\z()niﬁg,‘gésjgnation that would allow
them to go down to 1 acre. Ray thanked the appl(cgfl;t}'fopm%mi‘hé in and asked for a motion.
Walter motioned to approve RH-09-03 per sta ‘.Qc\om\n‘ie(i‘g»atibns; second by Richard.
Motion passed unanimously. LNy

> Went drrto explain that because

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTARY L

Ray gave an overview of public comr"ii‘enfém p\roc\ess and asked if anyone from the public
would like to speak. Massey May /éa’p\roa;cheddh‘e"table. Ms. Mayo spoke of the important
role the RPC has in the communityqénd_tﬁe‘,tools ithas to influence. Ms. Mayo felt that one of
the tools the RPC has is to revi V'use permits as stated in conditions. (6:15pm) Ms. Mayo
believed that the review procqss’}s‘an“aptién.,,when there is a change of circumstances or as
facts change. Ms. Mayo urged the.RPC, with public involvement, to utilize the review
process on the use permitdssuedfor the:Jungo Landfill site. Ms. Mayo stated she hopes the
RPC will potentially revoke the use permit based upon the facts stated in the first and second
petitions. L™

b

Robert Dolan thé;ipproachédiﬁe table to discuss the landfill issue. Mr. Dolan told the
RPC they had tl'é\hQ 1o put the issue (landfill) on the agenda to review the conditional use
permit adding he 'hopé“&th item is placed on the agenda and revoked. Mr. Dolan felt there
are grounds for the ré\i@?a’u’d denial of the use permit. Mr. Dolan noted he has petitions with
nearly 800 signatures and signature are increasing daily. He discussed his view on the
potential lawsuit the county could face if the permit is revoked stating that because there is
factual information to warrant a revocation of the use permit the RPC would be acting within
their powers to do so.

V. COMMISSION/STAFF/LEGAL COMMENTS/COMMITTEE REPORTS-Discussion

A. Review of compliance issue at 3635 Brown Lane regarding use of recreation vehicle as
a dwelling unit. Property is owned by Donald Lykke; assessor's parcel #13-553-17.
~this item postponed.

B. Review of issue regarding possible requirement of access to large parcels to be
included as part of a future Large Parcel Ordinance.




RPC Minutes
9-10-09 Meeting
Page 5

Stephen began by discussing the neighboring counties’ requirements for access. He felt
that access requirements could help protect those who purchase land. John Milton then

feel that two tracks meet this requirement. Mr. Milton explained thal is is‘a requirement
when the division is creating 16 or more parcels but is optionalw‘.qr\the eation of 15 or fewer
parcels. Mr. Milton told the board that Pershing County fol ows,,;hlsgui\ line. He then

asked if a minor county road would be considered legal acce \EHQerMSt‘ephen’s suggested
requirements. Stephen thought it would have to be a 3 ad.“\Mr. Milton explained that
NRS does not describe the type of road. Mr. Milton the p’laine&th'e process of declaring a
minor county road. He offered his opinion that the r6ade use _f6r'access by ranchers and for

recreation are open to the public, have been use /by thé public for many years and are

considered access. Richard asked about the pareel i-zgj‘requirements in Pershing County.
There was some discussion on various requir nts'in Pershing County. There was also

some discussion regarding the parcel map reqtitements in Lander, Eureka and Elko
Counties. Mr. Milton reported that parceli gfin Eﬁrelgai'and Lander Counties is not as
common as it once was. Stephen felt thé}ﬁ"access requirements would not limit property
owners' rights rather the requirements wou ‘provide protection to the public. Stephen stated
he knows someone who has spent t ’iyfife savingson a property that has no access. Mr.
Milton commented that there are se¥grat-properties that have no access. There was

discussion regarding minor cou:}w\qads and BLM lands. Stephen brought up the point that

other counties have placed reqp'.,g_ments listed in NRS pertaining to parcel maps creating 16

property being divided. Mr.

Milton ‘asked Bob how long it would take to get an access
I'through BLM property. Bob stated a year or two. Mr. Milton
explained this is a probl ‘because you only have a year to file 3 map. There was
discussion regarding peo We.d0i>hg' their due diligence when purchasing property. Bob
suggested that Step@ in.g his research to staff for review and distribution. Bob also
suggested the lan é‘ge:bgc‘:‘onlsidered in the future when composition of a large parcel
ordinance resumes. \:MrZ‘Mﬂtqn?concluded with the importance of maintaining open roads in

Nevada. Angie questianggmi);a committee was lined up to work on the ordinance. There

VI CORRESPONDENCE/BUDGET/PERSONNEL-Discussion & Action

Ray asked if there was any other business. There was none. Ray adjourned the meeting
at 6:54 pm until October 8, 20009.

Ray¥en, Chairman




